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Cover Design: Celebrating Diversity
The colour fi ngerprints on the cover celebrate diversity in our world today.  No two 
fi ngerprints are identical, just like no two persons are the same.  We are all diff erent in the way 
we look, in our backgrounds, beliefs and aspirations.  Everyone contributes to the world in his 
or her special way.  We are working to eliminate discrimination, promote equal opportunities 
and embrace diversity.  



OUR VISION
The EOC will create, with the support of the community, an environment where 
there is no barrier to equal opportunities and no discrimination.

OUR MISSION
To promote equality of opportunity between men and women, between persons 
with and without a disability, and irrespective of family status;

To eliminate discrimination on the grounds of gender, marital status, pregnancy, 
disability and family status through legislative provisions, administrative measures 
and public education;

To eliminate sexual harassment, and harassment and vilifi cation of persons with 
a disability.
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The past year has been a challenging one for Hong Kong and 
the Equal Opportunities Commission (EOC).  Hong Kong, as we 
battled the fear, worry and agony caused by the SARS (Severe 
Acute Respiratory Syndrome) outbreak; the EOC, as we faced 
leadership changes under the media spotlight.  Fortunately, 
storms do pass leaving in their aftermath, a renewed sense of 
strength and purpose. 

Meeting the Challenges
The leadership of the EOC changed in August 2003, when 
Ms. Anna WU was succeeded by Mr. Michael WONG.  Later, 
following Mr. WONG’s resignation in November, I took up the 
position as the Commission’s new Chairperson in December 
2003, in the midst of a controversy over the termination of 
appointment of the Director (Operations).

Having worked in the Social Welfare Department for more than 
30 years, it is a particular honour for me to be able to continue 
to serve the community, in an area which I am fully committed 
and have supported throughout my professional life.  I have 
pledged to ensure the impartiality of the EOC, and to handle 
matters in a fair and open manner in accordance with the law.



Realizing that last year’s incidents (in November) had aff ected 
not only the credibility of the EOC but the morale of staff , I have 
been working hard with the Commission’s Members and staff  
to regenerate our vigour, improve our services, increase our 
transparency and rebuild our credibility.  From the start I have 
identifi ed a 3C strategy – Consolidation, Capacity Building and 
Communication, which I believe, will enable us to move forward 
and better serve the community.

In mid-February, upon the request of the Legislative Council, 
the government decided to appoint an Independent Panel of 
Inquiry to look into the incidents relating to the EOC, and to 
submit a report by mid-February 2005.  The EOC has pledged 
full support and co-operation to the Panel, and looks forward to 
an open, fair, credible and evidence-based inquiry, with a view 
to draw a close to the issue, leaving the Commission to return 
to its normal course.

The incidents have highlighted public expectations on the 
governance of the EOC.  Like any other publicly funded body, 
the EOC is expected to be transparent and accountable 
to the public.  In the years to come, the EOC has to manage 
an increasing workload, face budget cuts and maintain its 
credibility.  We will adopt a positive stance in good corporate 
governance in meeting these challenges.

Battling SARS & Discrimination
The panic and fear caused by the SARS epidemic not only created 
tremendous hardship for Hong Kong, it also bred mistrust 
and discrimination.  For many who had never experienced 
discrimination and therefore regarded it as irrelevant or remote, 
suddenly found themselves facing all kinds of restrictions.  
Discrimination came in the forms of mistreatment of Hong 
Kong travellers overseas such as traders or athletes, while locally, 
many experienced the refusal of services, unfair treatment and 
stigmatisation of being suspected of having the disease or even  
loss of jobs in the more extreme cases.  During that period, we 
received hundreds of enquiries and complaints related to SARS, 
highlighting the importance of Hong Kong’s anti-discrimination 
laws and the constant need for vigilance against all forms of 
discrimination.

5
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Though discrimination abounded during the crisis, many in our 
community tried their best and produced their own solutions 
to cope with the crisis.  Some employers provided a greater 
degree of fl exibility for their employees with regard to sick 
leave, special paid leave and annual leave while others allowed 
employees, such as pregnant staff , to work on-line from home.  
Reiterating our stand that “Equal Opportunities Pay”, these 
enlightened policies do not necessarily incur extra costs.  Rather, 
fl exible working hours, job-sharing, time-off  for emergencies 
and working from home proved to boost effi  ciency, reduce 
absenteeism and eliminate the cost of staff  replacements. With 
the united eff orts to fi ght SARS, Hong Kong survived.

Advocating Fair Policies and 
Accessibility
The EOC is committed to creating a fair and inclusive society.  To 
bring about systemic reforms, our advocacy work and litigation 
have led to attitudinal changes.  To promote understanding of 
equal opportunities issues and examine alternatives to existing 
practices in the insurance industry, the EOC released a Discussion 
Paper on Insurance under the Anti-discrimination Legislation 
in December 2002, to explore issues related to diff erential 
treatment based on sex and disability.  In 2003/04, responses 
from the community and the industry were used to develop 
a set of guidelines for the insurance industry.  The Statement 
of Best Practices on Applying Pre-existing Conditions and 
Blanket Exclusions is expected to be issued by the Hong Kong 
Federation of Insurers in early 2005, taking us a step forward in 
ensuring equitable access to insurance regardless of one’s sex 
or disability.  We believe that non-discriminatory approaches 
could be developed to respond to new market needs and 
expectations for the benefi t of both insurers and consumers. 
This not only makes good business sense, it will also result in 
fewer complaint cases involving insurance practices.

Chairperson’s Foreword  
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On the issue of ATM accessibility, the Hong Kong Association 
of Banks has worked with the EOC in developing solutions 
to enhance access for persons with a disability.  I am very 
pleased to report that the Association adopted a set of ATM 
Installation Guidelines in April 2003 and circulated them to all 
member banks.  The guidelines will certainly help enhance ATM 
accessibility for customers with a disability.

Connecting with Business
As prevention is better than cure, education, training, publicity 
and awareness campaigns, both in the workplace and within 
the community, continue to form a major part of our activities.  

During 2003/04, our training initiatives continued to gather 
momentum.  In the year, a series of calendar and tailor-made 
programmes was conducted in collaboration with the public, 
private and NGO sectors; new programmes on Embracing 
Diversity and Train-the-Trainer were rolled out in response 
to growing demand from the sectors.  We also delivered 
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses to 
insurance intermediaries and legal professionals.  

Responding to the needs for small and medium enterprises 
(SMEs) to understand their obligations under Hong Kong’s 
anti-discrimination laws, we introduced our Equal Opportunities 
Essentials Kit for SMEs.  The kit was launched in July 2003, at a 
seminar held in partnership with the Hong Kong General 
Chamber of Commerce on Hong Kong’s current equal 
opportunities legislation in relation to SMEs, and provided 
an easy guide to equal opportunities in the workplace with 
practical samples and helpful checklists.  Other major chambers 
and business groups also assisted us in promoting the kit, 
including the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong 
Kong, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the Chinese 
General Chamber of Commerce and the Institute of Human 
Resource Management.  The EOC always stands ready to work 
with the business sector to prevent discriminatory acts and to 
develop equal opportunity policies and practices.
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Breaking Down Stereotypes
Within the community, our public education programmes 
broke new ground with Hong Kong’s fi rst Equal Opportunities 
Musical.  Produced by the Commission in conjunction with Radio 
Television Hong Kong Radio 2, the event was the culmination 
of a 2-month public education programme consisting of a 
10-episode radio drama series highlighting real life cases of 
discrimination and the recruitment and training of volunteers 
for the EO musical.  The radio series aired in October 2003 and 
attracted over one million listeners.  Another successful project 
was ‘Career Challenge 2003’, designed to break down gender 
and disability stereotyping among young people.  Eleven 
outstanding mentors shared their experiences with over 900 
secondary school students about battling against stereotypes 
to succeed in their chosen fi elds.

We also stepped up our educational eff orts to promote better 
understanding of family status discrimination during the year, 
as many persons with family responsibilities encounter varying 
degrees of discrimination in everyday life.  Students from 
sixteen secondary schools participated in the “Have Your Say 
on Family Status” Youth Debate Competition from March to 
May 2004, gaining in-depth knowledge about related issues. 
Meanwhile thousands of primary school students learned 
about the devastating eff ects of discrimination on the ground 
of family status in our latest school play on inclusion and equal 
opportunities, “3-D Interactive Machine”.

We believe the most eff ective way to change attitude and 
behaviour starts early in childhood. The fi ndings of a baseline 
survey on students revealed that they held stereotypical 
attitudes towards disability, gender and diff erent family roles.  
With an eff ort to integrate EO principles into the curriculum, the 
EOC is collaborating with the Women’s Commission and the 
Curriculum Development Institute to explore the best ways to 
assist teachers and students to understand equal opportunity 
and gender mainstreaming.

Legislating against Racial 
Discrimination 
While we welcome the Executive Council’s decision in June 2003 
to introduce racial discrimination legislation in Hong Kong, we 
are disappointed with the government’s delay in consulting the 
public.  We invited the Home Aff airs Bureau (HAB) to brief the 
EOC in February 2004 on the proposed legislation and shared 
our preliminary views with the government.  We also attended 
the Human Rights Forum and Ethnic Minorities Forum held by 
HAB to network with stakeholder groups and understand their 
stance and concerns.  All along, the EOC supported in principle 
the introduction of the bill and considered it logical for the 
Commission to implement the legislation. We are also of the 
view that the EOC should be provided with adequate resources 
and a reasonable lead time to implement the new legislation.  

Chairperson’s Foreword  
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Public Perception
In July 2003, the EOC commissioned a “Survey on Public Perception 
2003” to assess public support for our work and mandate to 
implement the three anti-discrimination ordinances in Hong 
Kong – the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination 
Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination Ordinance.  Of the 
2,002 respondents surveyed, 92.7% said that they had heard of the 
EOC, while almost all, 97.3%, said that our work deserved support.  
Signifi cantly, 76.6% or over three-quarters of the respondents 
also said that the concept of equal opportunities was important 
to them personally.  This growing recognition of our work has 
been built up over the years as the result of hard work by our 
Members, staff  and community partners.  Data collected in the 
survey helped us understand public expectations, and address 
new issues, to map our way forward.

Consolidating the EOC
8 years on, our eff orts are now focused on conducting the 
Overall Review of the Role and Organizational and Management 
Structure of the EOC, which commenced in September 2003, to 
allow us to look at our current roles and functions, work priorities, 
effi  ciency and eff ectiveness in order to fulfi ll our mission.  The 
Advisors to the Chairperson (Professor Nelson CHOW and 
Mrs. Laura LING) collected views from brainstorming sessions 
among EOC members and staff , meetings with various 
stakeholder groups and a survey on their perceptions and 
expectations. It is expected that recommendations will be 
made in late 2004 to map out future directions, with enhanced 
corporate governance to deliver our targets.  The EOC believes 
that, based on the solid foundation built in the past, we can 
reaffi  rm our vision and mission and consolidate the work and 
credibility of the Commission as an independent, eff ective 
and accountable public body to uphold the principle of equal 
opportunity and eliminate discrimination.

On the operational side, we have streamlined our work 
procedures and restructured the Disability and Gender Divisions 
into one Operations Division, and redistributed work among 
various divisions to deliver our services more eff ectively to 
meet the needs of the community.  We have collaborated with 
various stakeholder groups in sponsoring or organizing activities 
on equal opportunity, responded to increasing requests for 
training and consultancy work from both private and public 
corporations, investigated a large number of complaints (81 of 
which are SARS related), facilitated conciliation and provided 
legal assistance to bring cases to court.  
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Capacity Building
A cornerstone to consolidation is the full capacity of the 
organization to deliver its services as pledged.  The EOC decided 
to conduct a review on Human Resources Management (HRM) 
policies, practices and procedures as a self-improvement 
initiative with the aim to identify HRM issues that need to 
be addressed.  Three independent individuals with ample 
experience in human resources management and public service, 
namely, Mr. YEUNG Ka-sing, Professor CHAN Yuk Shue and 
Ms. Nora YAU, were invited to conduct the review on a 
pro-bono basis.  The review commenced in March 2004 and is 
expected to be completed in September 2004.  Such a move 
would build up our capacity and develop an able, committed 
and productive team, to meet the challenges ahead of us.  

Improving Communication 
The EOC’s goal to promote equal opportunities and eliminate 
discrimination is not an easy task, and the EOC cannot work 
alone. Views of all stakeholders including NGOs, government 
departments, public bodies, consulates, business sector, 
professional associations, labour groups and the educational 
sector provide us with insightful ideas to enhance our work.  
We are committed to strengthening partnerships with 
them, through open dialogue and eff ective communication.  
Throughout the year, there was an active programme of visits 
and meetings, seminars and conferences. These activities not 
only help us to keep abreast of the latest equal opportunity 
developments and happenings both in Hong Kong and around 
the world, they also provide us with a platform on which we can 
consolidate our past successes and build for the future.

During the year, we sponsored the 5th East Asian Women’s 
Forum, and participated in the Global Summit of Women 2003 
to connect with women leaders around the world.  We also 
continued our dialogue with the Asia Pacifi c Forum of National 
Human Rights Institutions to exchange views in promoting 
human rights.  Our presence in the regional and international 
arena is particularly signifi cant following last year’s controversy.

Chairperson’s Foreword  
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As Hong Kong is gradually recovering from the nightmare of 
SARS, there are signs that the EOC is also regaining its strength 
and the confi dence of the public.  Feedbacks from various 
quarters have been generally positive, and the amount of 
public support is encouraging.  Throughout the year, we have 
co-operated with the media, stakeholder groups, advisory 
bodies and the government to promote our values.  We are 
grateful to these community partners for their staunch support. 
We can only achieve the vision of promoting equal opportunities 
and creating a level playing fi eld for all in collaboration with all 
those who share the dream.

Mrs. Patricia CHU
Chairperson, Equal Opportunities Commission
(Mrs. Patricia CHU served as Chairperson of the 
Equal Opportunities Commission from 15th December 2003 to 
14th December 2004)



Our Role in the SARS Crisis
During the SARS outbreak, in addition to dealing with the rush 
of complaints received, we played an advisory role in a number 
of areas, doing our best to ensure that everyone in Hong Kong 
would be treated fairly and without bias, in view of the growing 
panic and concern within the community.  From the very start 
of the crisis, we remained in close contact with concerned 
government departments such as the Labour Department, 
issuing guidelines on employment matters in relation to SARS, 
and the rights and obligations of employers and employees 
under the circumstances.  Practical advice was also given 
to enquiries received on the adoption of positive measures 
and ways to avoid discriminatory behaviour.  Enquiries were 
generally related to concerns about leave and dismissals, health 
disclosures or personal information, as well as the need for 
protection of pregnant staff . 

Employers were encouraged to adopt fl exible policies during 
this time, particularly on the issue of sick leave, special paid and 
annual leave, as well as arranging for pregnant staff  to work 
on-line from home.  We are pleased to report that many 
employers adopted these positive management practices, 
easing the situation and ensuring the best solutions for their 
companies and their staff . 
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The Education and Manpower Bureau also sought our views with 
regard to the closure of schools.  We were able to advise them 
that under the existing legislation, the public health concerns 
were a valid justifi cation for closing schools.  Furthermore, we 
liaised with the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 
Authority, requesting that it consider every option and provide 
maximum fl exibility in accommodating students, aff ected by 
SARS, who were sitting for their public exams.

During the outbreak, a number of countries imposed travel 
restrictions on the people of Hong Kong.  We therefore contacted 
many of our counterparts in parallel jurisdictions overseas to see 
if they could help Hong Kong travellers encountering problems 
abroad.  A new ‘SARS Alert’ page on our web-site also kept 
travellers informed of our counterparts around the world and 
the latest information on the crisis. 

Looking forward, we now include material on SARS and similar 
situations in our training programmes.  Apart from covering 
employment related issues, such as managing a SARS-like 
situation from a workplace perspective, materials also include 
diff erent SARS-related scenarios.  These range from the 
implications of having infected staff  or staff  with infected family 
members to staff  living in infected housing blocks. 

Public Consultation on Insurance 
Issues
Insurance coverage is a necessity in today’s world, providing 
policy holders with some form of social and economic 
protection in the face of illness, tragedy or other unforeseen 
disasters.  It also plays an important role in providing a useful 
supplement to public health services, pensions and other social 
security schemes. 

Over the past few years however, the EOC has received a 
number of enquiries and complaints with regard to insurance 
practices.  These range from refusals to provide insurance 
coverage or the charging of diff erent premiums on the grounds 
of sex or disability to the exclusion of coverage for pre-existing 
conditions.  While some of these practices may be justifi able 
from a business or actuarial standpoint, many others do raise 
doubts and concerns.

To address these issues and to examine alternatives to current 
practices in the insurance industry, we released our Discussion 
Paper on Insurance under the Anti-discrimination Legislation in 
December 2002.  By the end of March 2003, we had received 
more than 25 submissions from the insurance industry, actuarial 
profession, NGOs, stakeholder groups and individuals. 

13
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In response to the issues raised in the Discussion Paper, the Hong 
Kong Federation of Insurers (HKFI) formed a Task Force in late 
2003, with the input from the EOC to formulate guidelines. As 
a result, the industry’s Statement of Best Practices on Applying 
Pre-existing Conditions and Blanket Exclusions is expected to 
be issued in early 2005.  Meanwhile, the Actuarial Society of 
Hong Kong has also advised that it will be issuing a Guidance 
Note outlining the responsibilities of actuaries under the anti-
discrimination legislation.

These developments are taking us an important step forward 
in our objective to ensure equal and fair access to insurance in 
Hong Kong.  Insurance companies are expected to off er services 
to their clients at reasonable and aff ordable premium. The 
development of a new non-discriminatory industry approach 
that responds to the market’s needs will further improve 
conditions, benefi ting consumers with better protection and 
coverage while broadening the market for insurers.  

ATM Accessibility
New information technologies can help to transcend 
traditional barriers of discrimination, providing a platform for 
social advancement within society.  A prime example is the 
development of the many new technology-based fi nancial 
services such as ATMs (automatic teller machines), telephone-
banking and e-banking services.  These advances, however, can 
sometimes cause increased inconvenience or even barriers for 
people with disabilities.  Since 2000, we have been advocating 
barrier free access both at banking centres and to other banking 
services available to the public.  Our aim is to ensure that service 
providers and hardware/software designers will develop 
increasing insight and skills in the use of universal design to 
accommodate the diverse needs of diff erent users. 

We invited the Hong Kong Association of Banks (HKAB) to join 
the EOC as a partner in this initiative on accessibility.  In 2001, the 
EOC-HKAB Working Group on Accessibility to Electronic Banking 
Service for People with Disabilities was formed to explore 
possible solutions to enhance the accessibility of banking 
services for people with disabilities.  As a result, the Working 
Group drew up accessibility guidelines in the use of ATMs. 

After in-depth discussions, HKAB adopted these ATM 
Installation Guidelines and circulated them to all member 
banks in April 2003.  The Guidelines, while drawing reference 
from practices adopted in Australia and the United Kingdom, 
were adapted to suit local requirements.  Part A contains 
guidelines for the installation of new ATMs or the replacement 
of existing machines with specifi ed requirements such as 
the “reach height” for the user, user display selection, tactile 
keyboards and other keyboard characteristics.  Part B covers 
recommendations for more advanced features such as private 
audio voice output facilities, that will enhance ATM accessibility 
for customers with disabilities.  

Eliminating Discrimination  
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The Guidelines are subject to regular review and revision from 
time to time, in view of technological advances and experience 
gained in their application and use. 

Equal Pay for Work of Equal Value 
(EPEV)
Equal pay for work of equal value (EPEV) holds the principle that 
while two jobs are not the same, holders of these jobs should 
be paid equally if the jobs have the same value.  Job values are 
determined by ‘job evaluations’, which quantify the attributes 
such as skills, responsibilities, eff orts and working conditions. 

In September 2001 a study on the pay diff erentials with regard 
to EPEV in the public sector commenced.  The study aimed at 
collecting data to enhance our understanding on EPEV in Hong 
Kong’s context and raise public awareness on the subject.  The 
Commission and members of the Task Force set up to advise on 
the study were examining the fi ndings and recommendation 
of the study.

Integrating Equal Opportunities into 
the School Curriculum
This project was fi rst initiated in November 2002, after an 
EOC survey on students’ attitudes towards disabilities, gender 
stereotypes and family roles indicated that the majority of 
students hold stereotypical attitudes towards these issues.  
Our aim has therefore been to introduce equal opportunity 
principles into the school curriculum at both the primary 
and secondary levels to cultivate acceptance and respect for 
diversity.

Taking the project forward, an advisory committee of education 
specialists was formed in February 2003.  In the course of 
understanding the issues, we learnt that the Curriculum 
Development Institute (CDI) had taken active steps to 
incorporate core equal opportunity and diversity values in 
Integrated Humanities, for lower secondary school students, 
and the Moral and Civic Education modules for Primary 1 to 
Secondary 3 students.  The development of a separate module 
under the Liberal Studies Curriculum for Form 4 and Form 6 is 
also in the pipeline.

To achieve synergy and facilitate collaboration in this area of 
work, the EOC had taken the lead to work with CDI and the 
Women’s Commission.  These included meetings between 
concerned parties to map out strategies for co-operation, 
arranging representatives from the EOC and the Women’s 
Commission to meet with publishers, to enable direct dialogue 
and input into school book reviews.
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In addition to the learning materials for students, the EOC, CDI 
and Women’s Commission have also agreed that teacher training 
is of paramount importance.  Based on our experience in the 
development of e-learning packages for teachers in disability 
areas we are exploring further collaboration in developing 
e-learning packages for teachers as a group, as we believe 
e-learning will enable teachers to learn at any time and place to 
suit their already very busy schedules.

Education Guidelines for Schools
Education opens doors, giving us the ability to not only realise 
our full potential, but also to make a diff erence as active 
members and contributors to society.  Education has proven to 
be an eff ective tool for empowerment and agent for change, 
both for the individual and society as a whole.

One of the objectives of the Disability Discrimination Ordinance 
(DDO) is to ensure that access to education is fair and does 
not discriminate against students with disabilities.  In 2001, 
we issued the Code of Practice under the DDO in promoting 
inclusion in Hong Kong’s schools.  In line with the objectives 
of the Code, we continue to work in partnership with the 
Education and Manpower Bureau, not only driving the need for 
integrated education but also assisting the Bureau in its parents’ 
education programmes, which promote the acceptance of 
students with a disability in mainstream schools.  Hundreds of 
executive members of parent-teacher associations joined these 
talks during the year. We also maintained close dialogue with 
parent groups to understand their concerns and to give advice 
on improvement measures.

Sexual Harassment in Universities
In summer 2002, some orientation activities at a university were 
brought to the attention of the EOC.  Following intense media 
coverage of students’ experiences of orientation camps, the 
EOC conducted a study in 2003 on sexual harassment in local 
universities.  The study covered: 

•  experience of students who participated in an orientation 
camp where sexual harassment allegedly occurred 

•  university students’ awareness of sexual harassment in 
general

•  extent of protection provided under the Sex Discrimination 
Ordinance

•  mechanisms that universities have in place to address sexual 
harassment on campus 

Eliminating Discrimination  
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The fi ndings showed that participants at the orientation camp 
were not sensitized to sexual harassment and treated the 
activities as a game.  Students who were under peer pressure 
to shout slogans containing derogatory sexual comments 
were reluctant to lodge complaints, for fear that they would be 
considered by others as trouble-makers.  Some students did 
not have knowledge about channels for complaint.  Slogans 
and posters with sexual contents created a sexually hostile 
environment on campus.  While a sexually hostile environment 
in relation to the workplace is unlawful, there is at present no 
legal provision outlawing a sexually hostile environment at 
or in relation to an educational establishment.  The EOC had 
recommended to the Government in 1999 to amend the 
Sex Discrimination Ordinance to prohibit a sexually hostile 
environment in an educational setting.  As a follow up to 
the study, in August 2004, a “Forum on Preventing Sexual 
Harassment in Universities” was co-organised by the EOC and 
the Women’s Commission (WoC) to share the fi ndings and 
discuss ways to prevent sexual harassment in universities.  
The forum had generated awareness and follow up action for 
training and consultancy.

Advocating Equal Opportunities
Eff orts to advocate the importance of gender and disability 
perspectives in the formation of policy will ensure sustainable 
development for the community.  As such, we maintained 
our ongoing participation in the Committee on Promoting 
Acceptance of People Living with HIV/AIDS (CPA), which advises 
on strategies to promote inclusion of people with HIV/AIDS.  
Under the Committee, an ad hoc AIDS Support and Services 
Working Group was set up to assess the services available to 
those infected with HIV, and to decide if some of these services 
could become more accessible.  Members of the Working Group 
also agreed that more eff ort should be made to link users to the 
services available.  A report, addressing the service gaps and 
emphasizing the need for better access to services for people 
with HIV/AIDS, was to be fi nalized in late 2004.

During the year, we continued our close liaison with the 
Transport Department in working towards the provision of more 
accessible transport services for people with disabilities.  Apart 
from attending the working group meetings convened by the 
Transport Department on a need basis, we also participated in 
the Expert Group Meeting which enabled us to contribute at a 
more strategic level and enhanced a more in-depth exchange 
of views at the policy level with the Transport Department 
and various concern groups.  We fully support the Transport 
Department’s strategy to promote ‘Transport for All’.



Under Hong Kong’s three anti-discrimination ordinances, it is 
unlawful to discriminate against anyone on the grounds of sex, 
marital status, pregnancy, disability or family status.  Behaviour 
such as sexual harassment, or harassment and vilifi cation on the 
grounds of disability are unlawful under the Sex Discrimination 
Ordinance and the Disability Discrimination Ordinance.

The employment-related provisions of the ordinances provide 
protection, not only to existing employees but also to job 
applicants, agents and contractors.  They also cover activities 
relating to vocational training, employment agencies, 
partnership admissions, professional bodies and trade unions.  
The non-employment related provisions off er coverage in 
areas ranging from education and the provision of goods or 
services to participation in clubs and sporting activities, the 
management of premises and government activities.

Enquiries
The public continues to gain an increasing awareness of issues 
related to the work of the EOC and the diff erent kinds of 
discrimination in Hong Kong.  From April 1997 to March 1998, 
we recorded a total of 7,284 enquiries consisting of 5,670 general 
and 1,614 specifi c enquiries.  Since then, this has doubled to 
14,157, consisting of 7,999 general and 6,158 specifi c enquiries 
in 2003/04.

While general enquiries relate to our overall activities and the 
anti-discrimination laws, specifi c enquiries relate to incident-
related questions.  Of the 6,158 specifi c enquiries, 1,670 (27%) were 
related to the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (SDO), 2,595 (42%) to 
the Disability Discrimination Ordinance (DDO) and 173 (3%) to 
the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (FSDO).  An additional 
788 (13%) covered the work of the EOC while the remaining 932 
(15%) enquiries fell outside our jurisdiction, covering areas such as 
age, race, sexual orientation and religion (See Figure 1). 
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Figure 1 Specifi c Enquiries from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 6,158)

DDO2,595 (42%)

FSDO173 (3%)

On the work of the EOC
788 (13%)

Outside the EOC’s jurisdiction
932 (15%)

SDO1,670 (27%)

Complaints for Investigation and 
Conciliation
Anyone who feels that he or she has been treated unlawfully 
under Hong Kong’s anti-discrimination legislation can seek 
redress by lodging a complaint in writing, either personally or 
through a representative, with the EOC.  During the investigation, 
we look into the facts of each case. Both parties are then given 
the opportunity to comment and respond to the allegations 
made.  First of all we endeavour to resolve the matter through 
conciliation, helping the parties involved to reach a settlement.  
If a settlement cannot be reached, we can consider other forms 
of assistance if the complainant makes an application to take 
the matter further.  We look at each application individually, 
considering issues of principle as well as the ability of the 
applicant to deal with the case unaided.  Assistance granted can 
include advice, legal assistance or any other assistance deemed 
appropriate.

Figure 2 Complaints for Investigation and Conciliation received from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 854)              

  
 SDO DDO FSDO Total

No. of complaints 391 (46%) 420 (49%) 43 (5%) 854

No. of complainants 201 (40%)  279 (56%) 20 (4%) 500

No. of respondents 336 (45%) 380 (51%) 28 (4%) 744



In 2003/04, investigation work on 942 cases of alleged unlawful 
acts were concluded (See Figure 3a).  Among them, 458 cases 
proceeded to conciliation, with 244 having reached successful 
settlement, while the remaining 214 cases were unsuccessful 
(See Figure 3b).

Figure 3 Complaints for Investigation and Conciliation handled from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total umber: 1,151)

Figure 3a Cases concluded after Investigation and Conciliation from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 942)

SDO470 (50%)

DDO419 (44%)

FSDO53 (6%)

   
 SDO  DDO FSDO Total

Employment 498 (53%) 384 (41%) 54 (6%) 936

Non-employment 53 (25%) 155 (72%) 7 (3%) 215

Total 551 (48%) 539 (47%) 61 (5%) 1,151
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Complaints Handled
During the year, we received complaints from 500 complainants 
against 744 respondents involving 854 cases of alleged unlawful 
acts, an increase from the 748 complaints received in 2002/03.  
Of this number, 391 (46%) were received under the SDO, 420 
(49%) under the DDO and 43 (5%) under the FSDO.  Together 
with those carried forward from previous years, we investigated 
a total of 1,151 complaints, representing a decrease of 28% as 
compared with 1,597 in the previous year (See Figure 3).
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Complaint cases that do not proceed to conciliation are 
discontinued for a variety of reasons.  This happens if the act 
in question is not unlawful, the complainant no longer wants 
to pursue the complaint, or if a period of over 12 months 
has passed since the act was committed.  Investigations also 
cease if the dispute is resolved through other mechanisms, or 
if the EOC considers the complaint to be frivolous, vexatious, 
misconceived or lacking in substance.  A total of 484 complaints 
in this category were discontinued (See Figure 4).

 

 No   Frivolous or  Complainants Complaint  Beyond Total
 unlawful lacking in  did not wish  resolved through   12-month 
 acts substance to pursue early resolution time bar 

SDO 7 (50%) 141 (48%) 71 (53%) 21 (70%) 5 (36%) 245 (51%)

DDO 6 (43%) 136 (46%) 60 (45%) 8 (27%) 9 (64%) 219 (45%)

FSDO 1 (7%) 16 (6%) 2 (2%) 1 (3%) 0 (0%) 20 (4%)

Total 14 (100%) 293 (100%) 133 (100%) 30 (100%) 14 (100%) 484 (100%)

Figure 4 Discontinued Cases by Reason from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Figure 3b Cases Proceeding to Conciliation  from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total Number: 458)
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SDO-related Complaints
•  A total of 498 employment-related allegations were 

investigated. Pregnancy discrimination continued to be 
the major cause for complaint (199 cases, 40%) followed by 
sexual harassment (142 cases, 29%) (See Figure 5).

•  Investigations were made into 53 non-employment 
related allegations; of which 32 (60%) were related to sex 
discrimination (See Figure 6).

•

•
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Figure 5 Employment Related Allegations investigated under the SDO from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 498)

Pregnancy discrimination

Sexual harassment

Sex discrimination

Victimization

Marital status discrimination

Figure 6 Non-employment Related Allegations investigated under the SDO from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 53) 
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Victimization

Pregnancy discrimination
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•

•

DDO-related Complaints
•  A total of 539 allegations were investigated.

•  Among both the 384 employment-related and 155 non-
employment related cases handled, disability discrimination 
was the single largest cause for complaint, accounting for 
481 (89%) of the total (See Figures 7 and 8). 

Figure 8 Non-employment Related Allegations investigated under the DDO from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 155)

Type of complaint Number of complaints 

Disability discrimination 133 (86%)

   Goods, services and facilities 78

   Access to premises 32

   Education 8

   Government 14

   Disposal and management of premises 1

   Others 0

Disability vilifi cation, harassment & victimization 22 (14%)

Total 155 (100%)

Figure 7 Employment Related Allegations investigated under the DDO from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 384)

�� �����

�� ����
� ����

�


�

���

�
�

���

�
�

���

�
�

� ����

Disability discrimination

Disability vilifi cation

Disability harassment

Disability victimization

•
FSDO-related Complaints
•  During the year, a total of 61 FSDO allegations were 

investigated, 54 (89%) of which were employment-related 
and seven (11%) non-employment related (See Figure 9).  
The majority (80%) of the allegations in the employment fi eld 
were related to dismissal on the grounds of family status.



Complaints for Follow-up Action
We also take action on complaints with regard to unlawful 
acts brought to our attention by third parties, or aggrieved 
individuals who do not wish to be involved in the investigation 
or conciliation process.  Under these circumstances, the 
Commission approaches the concerned parties to inquire into 
the matter, explain the relevant legislation, and advise them to 
rectify the situation.  Complaints for follow-up action soared to a 
high of 112 cases, as the SARS outbreak brought in a large infl ow 
of complaints.  We dealt with these with a quick response team 
which adopted a ‘complaints for follow-up action’ approach.  
During the year, we handled 40 such complaints under the SDO 
and 72 under the DDO.  No complaints in this category were 
received under the FSDO.

Legal Assistance
If a complaint has been lodged and conciliation has not been 
successful, the EOC has the power to grant various forms of 
assistance to applicants who wish to take legal proceedings with 
regard to the complaint.  When an application for assistance 
is received, our lawyers will conduct an assessment of the 
application before advising the Commission on the strength of 
the evidence and other considerations.  Based on this advice, 
the Legal and Complaints Committee of the Commission will 
decide whether or not to grant assistance.  Assistance granted 
may include legal advice to the applicant by the Commission’s 
lawyers, legal services for the applicant to obtain further 
information or evidence, or representation in legal proceedings 
by the EOC’s lawyers, or by barristers in private practice briefed 
by the Commission.

In 2003/04, we received 80 applications for assistance and 
granted assistance in 35 cases.  A breakdown of these cases can 
be found under Appendix 5. 

Figure 9 Allegations investigated under the FSDO from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (Total number: 61)

Discrimination in employment related fi eld
54 (89%)

Discrimination in non-employment related fi eld
7 (11%)
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Legally Assisted Cases
During the year, 17 cases where legal assistance had been 
granted (including cases carried over from previous years) were 
resolved without the commencement of legal proceedings.  
These included cases where the parties reached settlement 
and instances when EOC assistance was withdrawn for a variety 
of reasons, such as, when upon further examination of the 
evidence it was considered inappropriate to continue assistance, 
or when subsequent developments between the parties made 
it unnecessary for assistance to continue.

During this period, the Commission also handled 26 other 
cases where legal assistance had been granted (including cases 
carried over from previous years) but had not yet commenced 
court proceedings in 2003/04.  For further details, please see 
Appendix 6.

Court Cases
In 2003/04, assessments for damages were conducted in the 
District Court for two pregnancy discrimination cases.  In the 
fi rst instance, the trial took place in the previous year, with the 
plaintiff , represented by an EOC lawyer, winning the case against 
her prospective employer.  At the hearing for the assessment 
of damages, which took place during the year, the plaintiff  
was awarded the amount of HK$155,000 as compensation.  
The defendant subsequently appealed and was partially 
successful. In November 2004, the amount of damages was 
adjusted down by the Court of Appeal to HK$135,000. 

In the second case, with the legal assistance of the EOC, legal 
action commenced against the plaintiff ’s employer who did 
not respond.  The default judgment against the defendant’s 
employer by the District Court awarded the plaintiff  damages 
of HK$139,461.   

Legal proceedings also commenced in three other cases with 
EOC assistance.  Two of these were settled out of court while 
the third was still on-going at the end of 2003/04.

Five cases which commenced prior to 2003/04 were settled 
at the end of March 2004.  A further two cases, which also 
commenced before 2003/04, are still pending proceedings in 
the District Court.  One of these is a disability discrimination case 
relating to the recruitment of an offi  cer in one of the disciplinary 
services, while the other concerns a female employee who was 
dismissed on the ground of her pregnancy.  For further details, 
please refer to Appendix 7.
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Our Role
In our eff orts to mainstream equal opportunities, our 
communication strategy is based on a comprehensive youth 
programme, community outreach and media partnerships. 
Our promotion and public education work is aimed at eff ecting 
sustainable changes, and building capacity in others to foster 
equal opportunity values.

Early Education
The Commission understands the importance of early childhood 
education and our youth programme remains one of our most 
successful initiatives.  This year, our integrated programme 
covers primary and secondary schools, delivering the concepts 
and values of our work to tens of thousands of young students.

Drama Performances 
In delivering our message to young children, the EOC and the 
Jumbo Kids Theatre, a non-profi t theatre troupe for children, 
co-produced the “3-D Interactive Machine” in February 2004, a 
new play to promote the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance 
to primary school students.  Initially 30 performances were 
staged in 22 schools from February to March with 7,500 primary 
school students in attendance.  Through interactive games, 
children learned about the negative eff ects of discrimination on 
the ground of family status, and also about combating 
discriminatory attitudes against people with diff erent family 
responsibilities.  The play was heavily oversubscribed and 
the performances were well received by the students, 
who interacted enthusiastically with the actors during the 
performances.  Plans were in hand to stage more performances 
to cater for increasing demand.
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This is not a Joke, a play on the prevention of sexual harassment 
was produced by the Forest Union which staged a total of 52 
shows for over 12,500 secondary school students.

The Jumbo Kids Theatre also received funding from the EOC to 
perform Equal Opportunities Olympics and Race Against Special 
Learning Disabilities.  90 performances were completed in 
2003/04 for about 22,500 students to promote the concept of 
“Inclusion and Equality for All”.

Since 1998, the EOC has also sponsored a series of puppet shows 
The Kids on the Block, organized by the Hong Kong Society for 
Rehabilitation and the Society for the Relief of Disabled Children.  
In the past six years 113,644 youngsters have been able to learn 
about disability and gender equality issues while watching the 
fun and enjoyable production.  In 2003/04, 150 performances 
were held entertaining 18,961 participants.

“Career Challenge 2003” 
Over 900 secondary school students joined this popular EOC 
youth mentorship programme.  For the second year running, 
this project is aimed at breaking down barriers formed by 
stereotyping.  Eleven outstanding achievers from a wide 
spectrum of professions served as mentors.  Students either 
paid a half-day visit to his/her workplace, or joined a large 
group sharing session during October 2003 to February 
2004.  The illustrious mentors were: Emily CHAN, President, 
Médecins Sans Frontières Hong Kong; The Hon. CHAN Yuen-
han, Legislative Councillor and Trade Union Leader; Dr. Lily 
CHIANG, Chairman, Eco-Tek Holdings Limited, and Vice-
Chairman, Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce; CHONG 
Chan-yau, Executive Director, Oxfam Hong Kong; KO Tin-lung, 
Artistic Director, Chung Ying Theatre Company; Frankie-m 
LAI, Senior Soloist, Hong Kong Ballet; LEE Lai-shan, Olympic 
Gold Medallist; Dr. Rebecca LEE, Polar Researcher and Founder 
of China Polar Museum Foundation; The Hon. Michael MAK 
Kwok-fung, Legislative Councillor and Department Operations 
Manager, Kwai Chung Hospital (Registered Mental Nurse); 
WONG Tak-sum, Coach, Hong Kong Windsurfi ng Team and YAN 
Suk-yin, Helicopter Pilot, Government Flying Service.  
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Family Status Youth Debate Competition
To encourage students to refl ect on the issues of family status 
discrimination, the EOC and the Kowloon Women’s Organization 
jointly organized a secondary school debate competition, “Have 
Your Say on Family Status”.  Applications from 67 schools were 
received and 16 of them were chosen to join the competition 
in April.  The students all worked hard to learn the subject well, 
and their arguments impressed all those who attended the 
series of debates.  Feedback from the participants were most 
encouraging, indicating that they had learnt a lot through the 
process.

Community Outreach
An essential part of our work is to reach all key actors in 
our community who face barriers to independent living.   
Partnerships are forged to educate the public about current 
issues and problems.  

Promotion of SME Kit
The EOC survey on equity compliance in the business 
sector released in 2002 showed that small and medium 
sized enterprise operators wanted information about the 
anti-discrimination laws in a clear, concise and easy to follow 
format.  Since the completion of the Equal Opportunity Essentials 
Kit for SMEs, a promotion campaign was rolled out, supported 
by our partners which included the Hong Kong Institute of 
Human Resource Management, Hong Kong General Chamber 
of Commerce, Trade Development Council, Chinese General 
Chamber of Commerce and the Chinese Manufacturers’ 
Association.  EOC speakers also participated in a development 
forum for SMEs organized by the Hong Kong General Chamber 
of Commerce, which recorded one of the best attendances for 
the Chamber. 

Promoting Equal Opportunities  
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Community Participation Funding Programme
Building capacity to foster equal opportunity values, the EOC 
continues to off er funding to encourage non-governmental 
organizations, community groups and schools to initiate their 
own projects to promote the message of equal opportunities.  
During the year, we received 129 applications and allocated over 
HK$698,000 to 57 projects.  (See Appendix 8 for organizations 
funded under this programme.)

“Understanding Equal Opportunities” Reception
The reception was held in early October with the aim of 
updating our stakeholders and friends in the media about the 
latest developments at the EOC.  Over 200 representatives of 
non-governmental organizations and government offi  cials 
participated in the event.  
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Equal Opportunities Expo 2003
The Commission’s annual “Equal Opportunities Expo 2003” was 
launched in October 2003.  “Embracing Equal Opportunities, 
Celebrating Diversity” was the theme of the Expo which ran 
from October through November.  A series of about 20 events 
organized or funded by the Commission were held during this 
period to promote equal opportunities.  The kick-off  ceremony 
was offi  ciated by The Hon. Elsie LEUNG Oi-sie, Secretary for 
Justice, who was joined by seven mentors of Career Challenge 
2003.  Our partners in the Expo included Hong Kong YWCA 
Women’s Aff airs Service, Hong Kong Family Welfare Society 
NT (Kwai Fong) Centre, Heep Hong Society Tai Hang Tung 
Parents Resource Centre, Hong Kong Lutheran Social Service 
Cheung Ching Lutheran Centre for the Disabled, and Retina 
Hong Kong.  

Media Campaigns
A broad-based comprehensive plan to disseminate information 
in the mass media has produced increasing public awareness 
of our mission.  We have now adopted a parallel approach with 
the media in all our promotional activities.  

Summer Youth Programme - EO Musical 
900 people attended Hong Kong’s fi rst “Equal Opportunities 
Musical”, featuring Canto-pop stars Ms. Gigi LEUNG Wing-
kei, Mr. Chris WONG Hoi-kan and Mr. Alex FONG Lik-sun at 
Kwai Tsing Theatre Auditorium in October 2003.  The musical 
was co-produced with Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK) 
Radio 2. Volunteers were selected to perform with the pop 
stars on stage, after completing a series of training sessions 
conducted by famous drama directors, Mr. CHUNG King-fai and 
Mr. HO Wai-lung, professional playwright, Mr. CHAN Hing-ka 
and popular DJ, Mr. Michael LEUNG Gai-cheung.

Promoting Equal Opportunities  
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In promoting the musical, over one million radio listeners 
learned more about equal opportunities through a 10-episode 
radio-drama series.  The programmes highlighted real life cases 
of sex discrimination, disability discrimination and family status 
discrimination.

TV Docu-drama
“A Mission for Equal Opportunities”, our third TV docu-drama 
series jointly developed by the EOC and RTHK, ran for eight 
weeks from March to May 2003 on TVB Jade Channel.  Two 
of the eight episodes received awards in the 40th Chicago 
International Television Competition in March 2004.  “Destined 
Equality” was awarded a Gold Plaque while “Twins” received a 
Certifi cate of Merit.  Based on real life cases of discrimination, 
the TV series explains the anti-discrimination ordinances in a 
lively approach.  The series in Cantonese is available on the EOC 
website and for loan in video.  An educational module based 
on this series was later developed in mid-2004, as a self-help 
kit to guide teachers in promoting the understanding of equal 
opportunities for secondary students.

Media Activities
The Commission organizes media functions and briefi ngs 
to publicize EOC events, research or other developments.  In 
2003/04, four news briefi ngs and conferences were held and 
36 media interviews were given.  The Promotion and Education 
Unit handled over 930 media enquiries and also contributed to 
articles in the press.

During the broadcast of the TV docu-drama series “A Mission 
for Equal Opportunities”, the EOC contributed 7 feature articles 
to the Apple Daily to promote the series and explained the 
legal perspectives of equal opportunities issues raised in the 
docu-drama.

The EOC also wrote about equal opportunities in the Hong 
Kong Career Times and PTU News (a publication of the Hong 
Kong Professional Teachers’ Union) on a regular basis to illustrate 
anti-discrimination principles through case studies.  The articles 
attracted positive feedback from readers.

The SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome) outbreak 
spurred a sudden increase in enquiries and complaints from 
the public to request for our assistance.  The EOC reacted 
very quickly by setting up a SARS Task Force, and regular 
media updates including designated web pages proved to be 
eff ective channels to disseminate much needed information to 
the public.  Discriminatory cases were well covered by the press 
and electronic media. 
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On-line Resource Centre 
The EOC website, a fully bi-lingual (Chinese/English) on-line 
resource centre continues to deliver up-to-date information 
on equal opportunities issues in Hong Kong and around the 
world.  The website has become a driver of the Commission’s 
promotional projects, with a steady increase in its hit rate which 
stands at 1.4 million per month.  During the year, a group of 
students from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education 
designed a user friendly search engine for our homepage.  It 
became one of the Institute’s most successful student projects, 
and the search engine on the EOC website was showcased at 
the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Expo 
in April 2004.  Through this meaningful project, the students 
showed their strong support for equal opportunities and 
commitment to applying their technical knowledge in serving 
the community.  And for persons with a disability, the project 
ensures that they will not be left out when they navigate the 
EOC website.

Public Education Programmes
Talks
In 2003/04, we conducted 210 talks to interested groups and 
received 20 group visits to the Commission.  Participants came 
from overseas and Mainland China, while locally, visitors from 
government departments, non-governmental organizations, 
tertiary institutions and the business sector took part in the 
exchanges.  Apart from the anti-discrimination ordinances, the 
discussions covered a full spectrum of issues on discrimination 
and equal opportunities.

Newsletters
EOC News, our quarterly bilingual newsletter, provides a regular 
update of our programmes and activities as well as case studies 
under the anti-discrimination ordinances.  The EOC News boasts 
a circulation of over 80,000, available free of charge to members 
of the public.  Braille and on-line versions are also available.

Promoting Equal Opportunities  
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•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

New Publications
Publications focusing on the diff erent aspects of the anti-
discrimination legislation were published during the year.  
These help to provide information and assistance in eliminating 
discrimination, and are designed to focus on the prevailing 
issues in the year.  

• Annual Report 2002/03

•  Community Participation Funding Programme on Equal 
Opportunities (booklet)

•  Disability and Education Series – Learn about Chronic Illness

•  Disability and Education Series – Learn about Hearing 
Impairment

•  Disability and Education Series – Learn about Mental Illness

•  Disability and Education Series – Learn about Visual 
Impairment 

•  Equal Opportunities Expo 2003 (pamphlet)

•  Equal Opportunities Musical (VCD)

•  “Knowing Your Rights” Picture Book for Young Persons with 
Intellectual Disability

•  Telephone Survey on Women’s Knowledge of the 
Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination 
Against Women
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We need to be proactive about our work, and one of the ways is 
to keep abreast of the latest EO developments and issues both 
in Hong Kong and around the world. 

Regional and International Networks
Building on our international links established in the past, we 
attended the Colloquium on Global Diversity: Creating a Level 
Playing Field for Women, organized by the Global Summit of 
Women.  This event, supported by governments around the 
world and held annually in Washington DC, took place in 
April 2003.  We also attended the Global Summit of Women 
2003, which on this occasion was held in Morocco.  These 
events, which focused on equal opportunities for women and 
the need to foster their economic development on a global 
basis, continue to attract many successful businesswomen, 
entrepreneurs, government leaders and interested 
stakeholders. 

We also worked in partnership with a number of organizations 
including the Department of Social Work of the Hong Kong 
Baptist University, United Nations Development Fund for Women 
and the Hong Kong Council of Social Service to sponsor the 5th 
East Asian Women’s Forum, titled Embracing New Challenges: 
Women in Action, which took place in Hong Kong in December 
2003.  Attended by delegations from Mainland China, Hong 
Kong, Japan, Macau, Mongolia, South Korea and Taiwan, the 
forum aimed to empower East Asian women to take more 
active roles internationally by overcoming the many economic, 
political, and cultural barriers faced by women in the region.  
Acting as a channel for communication and mutual learning 
on the current status of women in the East Asian region, the 
forum focused on gender mainstreaming, globalization and 
feminization of poverty, traditional values and family dynamics.  
The forum had in particular encouraged the participation of 
young women and women with disabilities. 
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In 2003/04, we had an exceptionally busy year with international 
visitors, meeting and receiving a number of delegations from 
organizations around the world.  These visitors came from 
universities, law schools, business and women’s organizations 
in Mainland China, Taiwan, the United States and Hong Kong.

Major Regional and International Conferences Attended by the EOC in 2003/04

Date Event Location

April 2003 Global Summit of Women, Colloquium on Global Diversity: Washington DC, USA

 “Creating a Level Playing Field for Women” 

June 2003 Global Summit of Women 2003 Marrakesh, Morocco

December 2003 The 5th East Asian Women’s Forum Hong Kong

Date Organizations

April 2003 Centre for the Protection of the Rights of Disadvantaged Citizens of Wuhan University Law School

July 2003 Women offi  cials from Anhui Province

September 2003 National Union of Taiwan Women’s Association

EOC Visitors from Mainland China and around the World in 2003/04



Discussion with Stakeholders
Strengthening our links with the local community, we have 
made and continued to make every eff ort to consider the views 
of the government, the private sector, the public as well as NGOs 
and other concern groups, working in partnership whenever 
possible to achieve our mutual goals.  

In September 2003, the EOC commenced an Overall Review on 
the role of the EOC and how we could best fulfi l our mission 
and improve our work effi  ciency and eff ectiveness.  During the 
review, the EOC met with various stakeholders, to hear their 
perceptions of the vision, mission, roles and functions of the 
EOC and their views about how the EOC can advance its work.

The EOC Chairperson and two EOC Members (acting as 
Advisers) also visited two advisory bodies, the Rehabilitation 
Advisory Committee and the Women’s Commission in early 
February 2004, for an exchange of views, discussed areas 
of common interest and explored opportunities for future 
collaboration.  Similar exchanges also took place with three 
local statutory bodies, namely, the Offi  ce of The Ombudsman, 
the Independent Commission Against Corruption and the 
Offi  ce of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, between 
late March and early May 2004.  Besides establishing closer 
links, these visits are very useful to keep the EOC updated in 
the areas of law enforcement, promotion and public education, 
management and administration. 
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October/November 2003 Hong Kong AIDS Foundation (AIDS workers in China)

October 2003 Sichuan Academy of Social Services, Institute of Sociological Research

 Heilongjiang Province Women (Marriage Family) Research Institute

 Zhejiang Academy of Social Services, Institute of Sociology

January 2004 Legal Clinic of the Northwest University of Political Science

January 2004 Professional Training Institute of West China

January 2004 Law School of Zhongshan University

 Women and Gender Study Centre of Zhongshan University 

March 2004 Yale University
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The Chairperson and the Advisers have also built up contacts 
with the Liaison Offi  ce of the Central People’s Government in 
the HKSAR and other organizations on the Mainland, including 
the All-China Women’s Federation and the China Disabled 
Persons’ Federation.  Liaison will continue in order to strengthen 
the relationship with these organizations.

Local Links
Meanwhile, in addition to our existing work, the EOC also focused 
on partnering with diff erent sectors to combat discrimination 
to spread the values of equal opportunities.

During the year, we maintained our focus on mental illness, 
once again participating in Mental Health Month, with its series 
of activities funded by the Health, Welfare and Food Bureau 
to promote mental health and well-being, in October 2003.  
Our work in this area remains critical in view of the ongoing 
ignorance, prejudice and discrimination suff ered not only by 
people with mental illnesses, but also by their family members 
and those who have recovered from their illnesses. 

It was another year of co-operation with the business sector 
to promote equal opportunities.  In particular, we organized a 
seminar with the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce 
to launch our Equal Opportunities Essentials Kit for Hong Kong’s 
283,000 small and medium businesses.  Representatives of 
small and medium enterprises (SMEs) from diff erent industries 
participated in the design of the kit, which was extensively 
tested by focus groups.  Major business groups that rendered 
support included the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of 
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the 
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and the Institute of 
Human Resource Management. 

An additional initiative achieved during the year was our 
collaboration with the Caritas Community Development Service 
in carrying out its Asian Migrant Workers and Filipino Social 
Service Project.  Under this project,  about 200 Filipino, Thai and 
Indonesian domestic workers attended a series of workshops  
on sexual harassment.

Our dialogue with local and international organizations to gain 
their feedback on our work has become an ongoing process. 
We will maintain our task of keeping communication open 
and proactive with various stakeholder groups and welcome 
diversity of views.  As in years past, we have witnessed benefi ts 
for ourselves, our partners and our community.
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Building Networks  

Local Conferences Organized, Supported or Attended by the EOC in 2003/04

Date Event Organized by

June 2003 Conference: Enforcing Equal Opportunities in Hong Kong:  EOC and the University of Hong Kong

 An Evaluation of Conciliation and Other Enforcement 

 Powers of the EOC

June 2003 SME Market Day Hong Kong Trade 

Development Council

July 2003 SME Seminar on Equal Opportunities in the Workplace EOC and the Hong Kong 

  General Chamber of Commerce

August 2003 EO Seminar launching  EOC and the Chinese Manufacturers’ 

 Equal Opportunities Essentials Kit for SMEs Association of Hong Kong 

August/September 2003 Workshop on Sexual Harassment for Foreign  Caritas Community Development 

 Domestic Helpers Service (Asian Migrant Workers and 

  Filipino Social Service Project)

September 2003 Seminar on Women in China and Taiwan: Economic and The Hong Kong Legal 

 Legal Issues Education Trust

September 2003 Seminar on “Global Civil Society Development and  Hong Kong Council of 

 Hong Kong Civil Society Index”  Social Service
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October 2003 Mental Health Month 2003 Organizing Committee of Mental   

  Health Month 2003

October 2003 Human Rights NGOs Forum Home Aff airs Bureau

February 2004 Seminar on the Economic Empowerment of Women Yan Oi Tong Community Centre 

  and the City University of 

  Hong Kong

March 2004 Seminar on Feminism: History and the Way Forward Association for the 

  Advancement of Feminism

March 2004 Open Seminar: Wheelchair Transportation Safety Coordinating Committee on

  Occupational Therapy of the   

  Hospital Authority, Hong Kong 

  Occupational Therapy Association 

  and the Hong Kong 

  Polytechnic University

March 2004 “Transport for All” Seminar Transport Department

March 2004 2003/04 Annual General Meeting cum Award  The Hong Kong Epilepsy 

 Ceremony of Epilepsy Ambassador Association
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In our work, research studies and public surveys continue to play 
a crucial role in providing us useful insights and understanding 
into the public’s attitudes and perceptions regarding diff erent 
forms of discrimination.

Survey on SARS Related Diffi  culties in 
Work and Social Lives in Hong Kong
In view of the tremendous social impact of the SARS epidemic 
on Hong Kong and the stigma associated with the illness, we 
collaborated with the Chinese University of Hong Kong to 
conduct an opinion survey on SARS related diffi  culties in work 
and social lives in Hong Kong in July 2003.  The study aimed 
to analyze attitudes and behaviour for the development of 
methodology in our dealings with any similar crisis in the 
future.  The fi ndings would also help us to refi ne strategies for 
information dissemination, public education and the promotion 
of diff erent aspects of disease control.

The research fi ndings confi rmed our own experiences in dealing 
with the crisis.  The majority of respondents stressed the need 
for more information in helping them to understand the disease, 
together with a need for advisory guidelines in the  workplace.  
The need for suffi  cient knowledge and information was 
important in ensuring better work practices and more rational 
behaviour.  The survey revealed that factual and reasonable 
information helped ease unnecessary fears and concerns while 
also empowering individuals to make informed choices on 
how they could deal with the situation.  This in turn resulted 
in an improved environment with more rational behaviour, less 
discriminatory attitudes and better work practices.
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In our handling of enquiries, we have been able to assist the great 
majority of those who approached us with quick responses and 
rapid settlement of issues with the off er of practical advice and 
fl exible solutions.  We also moved rapidly to provide information 
on dealing with a number of scenarios related to SARS including 
the implications of having an infected member of staff  or staff  
with an infected family member.  During the crisis, we did fi nd 
that many employers adopted good management practices, 
facilitating and providing solutions for their companies and staff .

Survey on Public Perception 2003
In 1998, we commissioned a survey on the public’s awareness 
and perception of the Commission.  In 2003, we followed up 
with a further public perception survey, not only to assess 
awareness and perception of the EOC but also to gain an insight 
into their understanding of the EOC and the eff ectiveness of 
our work and programmes.

2002 individuals were interviewed over the telephone in July 
2003.  92.7% of the respondents said that they had heard 
of the EOC (as compared to 86.7% in 1998), whereas nearly 
everyone interviewed (97.3%) felt that the work of the EOC 
deserved their support (as compared to 97.6% in 1998).  84% 
thought the EOC had succeeded in enhancing the public’s 
understanding of discrimination and inequality (as compared 
to 82.2% in 1998). Moreover, 76.6% perceived equal opportunity 
as important. Other fi ndings of the survey provided insight into 
areas of work where the EOC should spend more eff ort, such as 
enhancing public knowledge on the existing legal provisions, 
organising more programmes that lead to sustainable eff ects 
on attitudinal and behavioural changes; strengthening public 
education on the core functions of the EOC and managing 
public expectations on the granting of legal assistance.

Survey on Stakeholders’ Perception 
and Expectation on EOC
In January 2004, in the context of the Overall Review on the 
Role and Organizational and Management Structure of the 
EOC, we conducted a Survey on Stakeholders’ Perceptions and 
Expectations on the Role and the Work of the EOC, involving 
NGOs, advocacy and opinion groups, political parties, public 
organizations and professional bodies.  While about half of 
the respondents (51%) found the statutory power of the EOC 
adequate and 8% considered it “more than adequate”, 41% 
considered our powers “less than adequate”.  Views towards 
the pace of development of equal opportunities in Hong Kong 
were also mixed.  Almost half of the respondents regarded the 
progress as reasonable, whereas another half regarded it too 
slow.  Such invaluable feedback allows us to gauge our work 
and how we manage expectations of diff erent groups in order 
to carry the community forward to achieve equal opportunity.
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During the year, our Training and Consultancy Unit, which 
was set up in February 2001, continued to gain momentum, 
as it seeks to ensure the provision of best practices and a fair 
working environment for all.  In 2003/04, a series of calendar and 
tailor-made programmes was conducted in collaboration with 
organizations and government departments to raise awareness 
of discrimination and harassment within their organizations and 
to equip them with the skills and procedures to deal with the 
situation should such problems arise.  

While the focus in 2002/03 was primarily on the private sector, 
in 2003/04 our activities extended into government and 
education, with special training and learning packages for 
civil service organizations and teachers as well as the general 
community.  Activities for the latter included seminars on 
sexual harassment for Hong Kong’s migrant workers as well 
as engagement in the development of a public education 
programme to promote racial harmony and acceptance of 
Hong Kong’s ethnic minorities. 

Our Ongoing Training and 
Consultancy Activities
Equal Opportunity Workshops for the Private Sector
Building on the need identifi ed among Hong Kong’s business 
community for training and information on Hong Kong’s 
anti-discrimination legislation and its requirements, particularly 
among Hong Kong’s medium to small businesses, we completed 
two calendar programmes (28 sessions for 516 participants) 
during the fi nancial year.  These programmes build on the 
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highly successful training workshops we conducted previously 
on an annual basis for human resources professionals, equal 
opportunity practitioners and managers. 

Broadening the scope of these programmes, two new 
courses were introduced this year.  Embracing Diversity aims 
to take employers beyond the three ordinances, providing 
them with an understanding of the value and importance of 
embracing and incorporating diversity into their work areas.  
The second involves Train the Trainer programmes, seeking to 
develop professional trainers in the workplace, who have the 
knowledge, skills and tools to deliver EO training within their 
own organizations.

Following an analysis of the results of a series of extensive 
business surveys in 2002, it was agreed that an Equal Opportunity 
Essentials Kit should be developed for Small to Medium 
Enterprises (SMEs).  Launched in mid-2003, this kit provides 
medium to small businesses with the tools and information to 
help them incorporate equal opportunities practices into their 
workplaces. 

Tailor Made Training
Our tailor made training programmes, which not only meet 
the equal opportunity needs of individual organizations but 
also help companies to develop their own EO policies and 
procedures, continue to increase in popularity.  During the year, 
we completed 114 training sessions for 6,163 people.

Training Hong Kong’s Professionals 
We also continued to provide training for specifi c professional 
groups across Hong Kong.  During the year, the focus was 
primarily on insurance intermediaries, legal professionals and 
architects.

In 2003/04, we delivered Continuing Professional Development 
(CPD) courses to over 500 insurance intermediaries.  Our CPD 
workshops for legal professionals, were accredited by the Law 
Society.  Marking a milestone in Hong Kong, EO training as part 
of the Institute of Architects professional training programmes 
took place for the fi rst time, linking equal opportunity to the 
work of the industry.  This development is key as the awareness 
of architects is crucial with regard to access issues in new and 
renovated buildings.  
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EOC/HKCSS EO Training Project for NGOs 
Hand-in-hand with the Hong Kong Council of Social Service, we 
delivered a series of training programmes for NGOs throughout 
August and September 2003.  A bilingual training kit was also 
developed and issued to all participants.  Due to popular 
demand, three additional workshops had to be introduced 
with a total of 282 NGO representatives registering for these 
workshops.

Training and Learning Packages
We also continued our development of teaching and learning 
materials with a focus on interactive and web-based information.  
In 2004, we completed our E-learning Programme for Teachers 
on Equal Opportunities in Education in partnership with the 
Education and Manpower Bureau.  The package provides a 
web-based training programme for primary and secondary 
teachers in relation to the Disability Discrimination Ordinance.   

Working with the Civil Service Training and Development 
Institute, we have begun to develop a series of Civil Service 
Training Packages for the government in 2003/04.  Refl ecting 
developments in Hong Kong’s general community, these 
packages have been designed to include equal opportunity 
values, gender mainstreaming and respect for diversity.  
Produced in conjunction with the Home Aff airs Bureau and 
the Women’s Commission, the training programmes will be 
completed and launched in early 2005.

Training and Consultancy  
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New Projects and Developments
Sexual Harassment Seminars
A series of seminars on sexual harassment was held for 
Indonesian, Thai and Filipino migrant workers through the 
Caritas Community Development Service in August and 
September 2003.  At the seminar for Indonesian workers, 
representatives from the Consulate General of the Republic of 
Indonesia were also present to explain the services and support 
available to their workers.  Around 200 participants attended 
the seminars.  Participants found the information provided very 
useful as many of them were not aware of their rights under the 
equal opportunity laws in Hong Kong.

Empowering ‘Young People with an Intellectual Disability’ 
Training Project 
Following the successful series of training courses provided 
for the staff  of the Vocational Training Council, we developed 
a booklet informing young people with an intellectual 
disability of their rights to protection from discrimination 
and harassment under Hong Kong’s three equal opportunity 
ordinances.  The booklet, produced in a straightforward 
and simple picture book format, provides easy access 
to this vulnerable group.  Over 13,500 copies have been 
distributed following requests from both government and 
non-government organizations.

Race Discrimination Training
During the year Hong Kong broke new ground with the 
Home Aff airs Bureau’s establishment of The Committee on the 
Promotion of Racial Harmony to carry out public education 
programmes that will generate harmony and promote racial 
acceptance for Hong Kong’s ethnic minorities.  A working 
group was formed to design the curriculum and determine the 
logistics for the delivery of this programme.  The EOC was invited 
by the Home Aff airs Bureau to participate in this working group. 
This paved the ground work for the impending introduction of  
racial discrimination legislation in Hong Kong. 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE COMMISSION MEMBERS OF
THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Sex Discrimination Ordinance)

We have audited the accounts on pages 48 to 71 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of Commission and auditors
The Commission is responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view.  In preparing accounts 
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied 
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion 
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.  We do not 
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certifi ed Public Accountants.  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts 
and disclosures in the accounts.  It also includes an assessment of the signifi cant estimates and judgements made by 
the Commission in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
circumstances of the Commission, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide us with suffi  cient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are 
free from material misstatement.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of 
information in the accounts.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Commission as at 31st March 2004 and 
of its results and cash fl ows for the year then ended.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Hong Kong,  3 November 2004

Equal Opportunities Commission
Statement of Accounts
for the Year Ended 31st March 2004



  2004 2003
   
   

      

  78,074,380 80,042,432
   - 2,220,000

  233,758 567,166
  560,917 649,421

   
  78,869,055 83,479,019
     
 

      

  40,450,045 43,965,366
  14,843,427 17,081,444

  223,108 1,661,476
  820,893 6,121,471

  3,924,062 5,450,769
 8 (218,414) -

  346,055 172,652
  5,447,527 5,431,064
  3,238,886 142,338

 8 (2,370,000) -
  254,522 598,151

  98,290 96,768
  63,893 44,589

  2,498,589 2,712,931
   
  69,620,883 83,479,019
      

 3 9,248,172 - 

 7 1,324,190 - 
 11 (10,572,362) -

   
  - -
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 Note 2004 2003
  HK$ HK$
   
INCOME AND REVENUE     
 
Government subventions  78,074,380 80,042,432
Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation   - 2,220,000
Interest income  233,758 567,166
Sundry income  560,917 649,421
   
  78,869,055 83,479,019
     
 
EXPENDITURE     
 
Staff  salaries  40,450,045 43,965,366
Staff  gratuity, other benefi ts and allowances  14,843,427 17,081,444
Increase in provision for unutilised annual leave  223,108 1,661,476
Legal fees  820,893 6,121,471
Publicity and public education expenses  3,924,062 5,450,769
Publicity and public education expenses fi nanced by 
   capital subvention fund 8 (218,414) -
Research projects and training modules  346,055 172,652
Rent and rates  5,447,527 5,431,064
Furniture and equipment  3,238,886 142,338
Furniture and equipment fi nanced by 
   capital subvention fund 8 (2,370,000) -
Staff  training, overseas visits and conferences  254,522 598,151
Website development and video hosting expenses  98,290 96,768
Training workshop expenses  63,893 44,589
Other general and administrative expenses  2,498,589 2,712,931
   
  69,620,883 83,479,019
      

Surplus for the year 3 9,248,172 - 

Transfer from general reserve 7 1,324,190 -
Transfer to subvention surplus account payable to Government 11 (10,572,362) -
   
Surplus carried forward  - -
      
 

Statement of Income and Expenditure
for the Year Ended 31st March 2004
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  2004 2003
   

   
 4 6 6

 5 5,601,359 5,959,344
   
  5,601,365 5,959,350
     

      
  1,884,584 1,661,476

  633,882 375,619
  27,736,800 20,918,245

   
  30,255,266 22,955,340
   

      
 6 3,875,389 5,719,530

 9(b) 1,240,196 3,370,346
  1,884,584 1,661,476

 10 745,035 1,358,292
 11 10,572,362 -

   
  18,317,566 12,109,644
        
   

  11,937,700 10,845,696
      

  17,539,065 16,805,046
      

   
 7 9,884,126 11,208,316

  - -
 8 - 2,865,659

   
  9,884,126 14,073,975
   

 9(a) 166,080 142,073
 9(b) 7,211,614 2,588,998

 8 277,245 -
   
  17,539,065 16,805,046
      

  B.B.S.  B.B.S., J.P. 
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 Note 2004 2003
  HK$ HK$
NON CURRENT ASSETS   
Fixed assets 4 6 6
Gratuity subvention receivable from Government 5 5,601,359 5,959,344
   
  5,601,365 5,959,350
     

CURRENT ASSETS      
Unutilised annual leave subvention receivable from Government  1,884,584 1,661,476
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  633,882 375,619
Bank balances and cash  27,736,800 20,918,245
   
  30,255,266 22,955,340
   
     
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable, provisions and accruals 6 3,875,389 5,719,530
Provision for staff  gratuity 9(b) 1,240,196 3,370,346
Provision for unutilised annual leave  1,884,584 1,661,476
Government subvention received in advance 10 745,035 1,358,292
Subvention surplus account payable to Government 11 10,572,362 -
   
  18,317,566 12,109,644
        
   
NET CURRENT ASSETS  11,937,700 10,845,696
      

  17,539,065 16,805,046
      

Represented by:   

OTHER RESERVES 7 9,884,126 11,208,316

SURPLUS AND DEFICIT ACCOUNT  - -

CAPITAL SUBVENTION FUND 8 - 2,865,659
   
  9,884,126 14,073,975
   
Provision for long service and severance payments 9(a) 166,080 142,073
Provision for staff  gratuity 9(b) 7,211,614 2,588,998
Capital subvention fund 8 277,245 -
   
  17,539,065 16,805,046
      

 Mrs. Patricia CHU YEUNG Pak-yu  B.B.S. Mr. Peter YEUNG Kong-hing B.B.S., J.P. Ms. Kerrie TENG Yee-san
 Chairperson of the Commission Convenor of the Administration Accountant
  and Finance Committee

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
as at 31st March 2004
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 - 6,283,711 967,439 7,251,150
    

 - - 2,919,075 2,919,075
    

 - 8,204,907 - 8,204,907
    

 - (3,280,302) (1,020,855) (4,301,157)
    

 - 11,208,316 2,865,659 14,073,975
    

  - - (2,865,659) (2,865,659)
    

 9,248,172 - - 9,248,172
    

 1,324,190 (1,324,190) - -
    

 (10,572,362) - - (10,572,362)
    

 - 9,884,126 - 9,884,126
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 Statement of  Capital
 Income and Other Subvention
 Expenditure  Reserves Fund Total
 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  (Note 7) (Note 8) 
    
At 1st April 2002 - 6,283,711 967,439 7,251,150
    
Government capital subvention during the year - - 2,919,075 2,919,075
    
Transfer from previous year’s subvention 
   surplus account payable to Government  - 8,204,907 - 8,204,907
    
Amount utilised during the year - (3,280,302) (1,020,855) (4,301,157)
    
At 31st March 2003 and 1st April 2003 - 11,208,316 2,865,659 14,073,975
    
Reclassifi ed  - - (2,865,659) (2,865,659)
    
Surplus for the year 9,248,172 - - 9,248,172
    
Transfer from general reserve 1,324,190 (1,324,190) - -
    
Transfer to subvention surplus account 
   payable to Government (10,572,362) - - (10,572,362)
    
At 31st March 2004 - 9,884,126 - 9,884,126
        
 

Statement of Changes in Funds
for the Year Ended 31st March 2004
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  2004 2003
   
   

 13(a) 7,651,241 (13,635,181)
     
   

      

  233,758 567,166
  (1,066,444) (298,737)

   
  (832,686) 268,429

       
  6,818,555 (13,366,752)

     
   

 13(b) - 2,919,075
   

  - 2,919,075
       

  6,818,555 (10,447,677)
  20,918,245 31,365,922

   
  27,736,800 20,918,245

      
   

      

  27,736,800 20,918,245
      
 

54

Financial Statements  



 Note 2004 2003
  HK$ HK$
   
Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) from operating activities 13(a) 7,651,241 (13,635,181)
     
   
Investing activities      

Interest received  233,758 567,166
Purchase of fi xed assets  (1,066,444) (298,737)
   
Net cash (outfl ow)/infl ow from investing activities  (832,686) 268,429
       
Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) before fi nancing  6,818,555 (13,366,752)
     
   
Financing activities      

Government capital subvention 13(b) - 2,919,075
   
Net cash infl ow from fi nancing activities  - 2,919,075
       
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  6,818,555 (10,447,677)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year  20,918,245 31,365,922
   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  27,736,800 20,918,245
      
   
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:      

Bank balances and cash  27,736,800 20,918,245
      

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31st March 2004

55
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1. Legal status

  The Equal Opportunities Commission (the “Commission”) is a statutory body set up in 1996 to implement the Sex 
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance and the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance.  
The Commission works towards the elimination of discrimination on the grounds of sex, marital status, pregnancy, 
disability and family status.  The Commission also aims to eliminate sexual harassment and harassment and 
vilifi cation on the grounds of disability and promote equality of opportunities between men and women, between 
persons with and without a disability and irrespective of family status.

  The Commission is a government subvented body exempted from payment of all taxes administered by the Inland 
Revenue Department by virtue of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112).

2. Principal accounting policies

 The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below:

  (a) Basis of preparation
   The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong 
Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants.

  (b) Revenue recognition
  (i) Income from government subvention is recognised on an accruals basis.

    Government subventions relating to specifi c projects are included in the capital subvention fund and are 
deferred and recognised as income in the statement of income and expenditure over the period necessary 
to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

    Government subventions relating to the purchase of fi xed assets are included in the capital subvention fund 
and are credited to the statement of income and expenditure as income to match with the depreciation 
charge of the related assets.

  (ii)  Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established.

  (iii)  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts 
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

  (iv) Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.

 (c) Fixed assets
   The Commission, as a non-profi t making organisation, is exempt from compliance with Statement of Standard 

Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) No. 17 “Property, plant and equipment” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certifi ed Public Accountants. 

  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amounts written off .

   Each category of fi xed assets is stated at a nominal value of HK$1.  The cost of all additions is written off  in the 
year of acquisition to the statement of income and expenditure.

Notes to the Accounts
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    2004 2003
     
   
   
  -  197,558 -
  -  868,886 142,337
  5,447,527 5,431,064
  25,560 23,660
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 (d) Operating leases
   Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are 

accounted for as operating leases.  Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received from 
the leasing company are charged to the statement of income and expenditure on a straight-line basis over the 
lease period.

  (e) Translation of foreign currencies
   Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary 

assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange 
ruling at the balance sheet date.  All exchange diff erences are dealt with in the statement of income and 
expenditure.

 (f ) Provisions
   Provisions are recognised when the Commission has a present legal or constructive obligation where as a 

result of past events, it is probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.  Where the Commission expects a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, to the extent of the amount of the related provision, but 
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

 (g) Employee benefi ts
  (i) Employee leave entitlements
    Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to 

employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result 
of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

    Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of 
leave.

  (ii) Pension obligations
    The Commission has established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong.  The 

assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered funds.  Both the Commission and the 
employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a maximum of 
HK$1,000 per employee per month.  The Commission’s contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed as 
incurred.

3. Surplus for the year
    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$
 Surplus for the year is stated after charging the following:  
 Fixed assets written off   
  - fi nanced by government capital subventions 197,558 -
  - fi nanced by other government subventions 868,886 142,337
 Operating leases - land and buildings 5,447,527 5,431,064
 Auditors’ remuneration 25,560 23,660
          

Notes to the Accounts
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  645,649 5,413,367 2,402,332 726,698 3,788,716 394,724 13,371,486
  - 130,032 805,253 - 131,159 - 1,066,444
  - - (80,037) - (19,115) - (99,152)
          
  645,649 5,543,399 3,127,548 726,698 3,900,760 394,724 14,338,778
          
         
  645,648 5,413,366 2,402,331 726,697 3,788,715 394,723 13,371,480
  - 130,032 805,253 - 131,159 - 1,066,444
  - - (80,037) - (19,115) - (99,152)
          
  645,648 5,543,398 3,127,547 726,697 3,900,759 394,723 14,338,772
                    
        
  1 1 1 1 1 1 6
                      

  1 1 1 1 1 1 6  
                      

    2004 2003
       
 
  5,959,344 5,243,096
   6,826,015 8,436,727
  (7,184,000) (7,720,479)
     
  5,601,359 5,959,344
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4. Fixed assets
         Simultaneous
      Offi  ce   interpretation
     Fixtures furniture   and public
    Leasehold and  and Motor Computer address
    improvements fi ttings equipment vehicles equipment equipment Total
    HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
 Cost       
 At 1st April 2003 645,649 5,413,367 2,402,332 726,698 3,788,716 394,724 13,371,486
 Additions - 130,032 805,253 - 131,159 - 1,066,444
 Disposals/written off  - - (80,037) - (19,115) - (99,152)
          
 At 31st March 2004 645,649 5,543,399 3,127,548 726,698 3,900,760 394,724 14,338,778
          
 Accumulated amounts 
    written off         
 At 1st April 2003 645,648 5,413,366 2,402,331 726,697 3,788,715 394,723 13,371,480
 Written off  for the year - 130,032 805,253 - 131,159 - 1,066,444
 Disposals/written off  - - (80,037) - (19,115) - (99,152)
          
 At 31st March 2004 645,648 5,543,398 3,127,547 726,697 3,900,759 394,723 14,338,772
                    
 Net book value       
 At 31st March 2004 1 1 1 1 1 1 6
                      
 At 31st March 2003 1 1 1 1 1 1 6
                      

5. Gratuity subvention receivable from government
    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$  
 
 At 1st April 5,959,344 5,243,096
 Provision made for staff  gratuity  6,826,015 8,436,727
 Gratuity subvention received from Government (7,184,000) (7,720,479)
     
 At 31st March 5,601,359 5,959,344
          

  This represents funds to be reimbursed by the Government in respect of gratuity payments to staff  of 
the Commission.

Notes to the Accounts

61



 

 
    2004 2003
       
 
  2,825,478 347,341
  820,893 6,121,471
  (2,215,671) (3,643,334)
     
  1,430,700 2,825,478
            

  

      
    
     
  1,042,666 3,241,045 2,000,000 6,283,711
 

 - 1,603,000 6,601,907 8,204,907
  (156,400) (2,300,000) (823,902) (3,280,302)
       
 

 886,266 2,544,045 7,778,005 11,208,316
   - - (1,324,190) (1,324,190)
       
  886,266 2,544,045 6,453,815 9,884,126
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6. Accounts payable, provisions and accruals

 Movement of provisions included in accounts payable, provisions and accruals is as follows:

 Provision for legal fees
    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$
   
 At 1st April 2,825,478 347,341
 Provisions made 820,893 6,121,471
 Amount paid during the year (2,215,671) (3,643,334)
     
 At 31st March 1,430,700 2,825,478
          

  Provision for legal fees is set up for legal expenses to be incurred in respect of litigation raised by or against the 
Commission.  The timing and amount to be utilised will depend on the progress of the respective litigation.

7. Other reserves
     Legal
    Capital litigation General
    reserve reserve reserve Total
    HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
     
 At 1st April 2002 1,042,666 3,241,045 2,000,000 6,283,711
 Transfer from previous year’s 
    subvention surplus account payable 
    to Government - 1,603,000 6,601,907 8,204,907
 Amount utilised during the year (156,400) (2,300,000) (823,902) (3,280,302)
       
 At 31st March 2003 and  886,266 2,544,045 7,778,005 11,208,316
    at 1st April 2003
 Transfer to the statement of 
    income and expenditure  - - (1,324,190) (1,324,190)
       
 At 31st March 2004 886,266 2,544,045 6,453,815 9,884,126
              

  The capital reserve is available for use in computer system enhancement, offi  ce refurbishment, improvement of 
offi  ce security and other capital expenditure.

  The legal litigation reserve may be utilized for the legal fees in respect of legal assistance granted to any person who 
institutes proceedings under the anti-discrimination ordinances or any litigation raised against the Commission.

 The general reserve is transferred from the statement of income and expenditure and is available for general use.

  The reserve funds are transferred to the statement of income and expenditure to match the related costs included 
under expenditure. In previous years, the related costs were dealt with as a movement in other reserves.
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  472,124 - - 495,315 967,439
  - 440,000 2,450,000 29,075 2,919,075
  (472,124) - (80,000) (468,731) (1,020,855)
        
 

 - 440,000 2,370,000 55,659 2,865,659
        
 
 - 

 - - (197,558) - (197,558)
 -  - - (2,172,442) - (2,172,442)
 -  - (218,414) - - (218,414)
        
   - (218,414) (2,370,000) - (2,588,414)
                
  - 221,586 - 55,659 277,245
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8. Capital subvention fund
       Research and
    Publicity and   educational 
    public education Sector Setting  projects
    strategies  targeted up costs  on equal pay
    consultancy training for additional  for work 
    services  materials offi  ce of equal value Total
    HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
      
 At 1st April 2002 472,124 - - 495,315 967,439
 Non-recurrent Government 
    subventions received - 440,000 2,450,000 29,075 2,919,075
 Expenditure     
   - Expenses (472,124) - (80,000) (468,731) (1,020,855)
        
 At 31st March 2003 and 
    1st April 2003 - 440,000 2,370,000 55,659 2,865,659
        
 Transfer to the statement of 
    income and expenditure as 
    income to match with:       
 - Depreciation of fi xed assets 
   fi nanced by government 
   capital subventions - - (197,558) - (197,558)
 - Other charges in furniture and 
   equipment - - (2,172,442) - (2,172,442)
 - Publicity and 
   public education expenses - (218,414) - - (218,414)
        
 Total   - (218,414) (2,370,000) - (2,588,414)
                
 At 31st March 2004 - 221,586 - 55,659 277,245
                

  The capital subvention fund represents the unutilised balance of non-recurrent government capital subvention 
received for special projects.  The funds are released to the statement of income and expenditure as income to 
match the related costs.  In previous years, instead of recognising the funds received as income to match the related 
costs in the statement of income and expenditure, these related costs were dealt with as a movement in the capital 
subvention fund.
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    2004 2003
     
   
   142,073 173,028
   24,007 13,448
   - (44,403)
     
   166,080 142,073
          

 
    2004 2003
    
   
   5,959,344 16,844,610
   6,826,015 8,436,727
   (4,333,549) (19,321,993)
     
    8,451,810 5,959,344
   
   (1,240,196) (3,370,346)
     
   7,211,614 2,588,998
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9 Long term liabilities

 (a) Provision for long service and severance payment
    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$
   
  At 1st April 142,073 173,028
  Provisions made 24,007 13,448
  Amount paid during the year - (44,403)
     
  At 31st March 166,080 142,073
          

 (b) Provision for staff  gratuity
    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$
   
  At 1st April 5,959,344 16,844,610
  Provisions made 6,826,015 8,436,727
  Amount paid during the year (4,333,549) (19,321,993)
     
  At 31st March  8,451,810 5,959,344
   
  Less: amount due within one year included in current liabilities (1,240,196) (3,370,346)
     
  Long term portion 7,211,614 2,588,998
          

   Provision for staff  gratuity is set up for the gratuity payments which will be payable to employees of the 
Commission who complete their three year contracts commencing from the date of their employment.

10 Government subvention received in advance 

 The subvention is received in advance in connection with various services to be provided after year end.  

11 Subvention surplus account payable to Government 

  The Commission may transfer a certain amount of the surplus to its reserves upon the approval of the Government.  
The remaining portion, if any, which is not allowed to be kept as the Commission’s reserves will be off set against 
the subsequent subvention paid by the Government to the Commission.  During the year, the excess of the 
surplus of income over expenditure is transferred to subvention surplus account payable to Government.  The 
Commission has applied to Government for the retention of this surplus but this has not been fi nalised up to the 
date of this report.
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    2004 2003
     
   
  2,670,066 3,560,088
   - 2,670,066
     
    2,670,066 6,230,154
          

 
    2004 2003
     
   
   9,248,172 -
   1,066,444 142,337
   (10,572,362) -
   - (823,902)
   - (2,300,000)
   - (1,020,855)
   (233,758) (567,166)
     
   (491,504) (4,569,586)
   357,985 (716,248)
   (223,108) (1,661,476)
   (258,263) 321,153
   (1,844,141) 2,402,429
   2,492,466 (10,885,266)
   223,108 1,661,476
   (613,257) (81,708)
   10,572,362 (75,000)
    (2,588,414) -
   24,007 (30,955)
     
   7,651,241 (13,635,181)
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12 Commitments under operating leases

   At 31st March, the Commission had future aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings 
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

     2004 2003
     HK$ HK$
   
  Not later than one year  2,670,066 3,560,088
  Later than one year and not later than fi ve years  - 2,670,066
      
     2,670,066 6,230,154
            

13 Notes to the cash fl ow statement

  (a) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) from operating activities

    2004 2003
    HK$ HK$
   
   Surplus for the year 9,248,172 -
   Fixed assets written off  for the year 1,066,444 142,337
   Transferred to subvention surplus account payable to Government (10,572,362) -
   Expenditure utilised in general reserve - (823,902)
   Expenditure utilised in legal litigation reserve - (2,300,000)
   Expenditure utilised in capital subvention fund - (1,020,855)
   Interest income (233,758) (567,166)
     
   Operating loss before working capital changes (491,504) (4,569,586)
   Decrease/(increase) in gratuity subvention receivable from Government 357,985 (716,248)
   Increase in unutilised annual leave subvention receivable from Government (223,108) (1,661,476)
   (Increase)/decrease in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (258,263) 321,153
   (Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, provisions and accruals (1,844,141) 2,402,429
   Increase/(decrease) in provision for staff  gratuity 2,492,466 (10,885,266)
   Increase in provision for unutilised annual leave 223,108 1,661,476
   Decrease in Government subvention received in advance (613,257) (81,708)
   Increase/(decrease) in subvention surplus account payable to Government 10,572,362 (75,000)
   Decrease in capital subvention fund  (2,588,414) -
   Increase/(decrease) in provision for long service and severance payment 24,007 (30,955)
     
   Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) from operating activities 7,651,241 (13,635,181)
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    2004 2003
     
   
   2,865,659 967,439
   (2,865,659) -
   - 2,919,075
   - (1,020,855)
     
   - 2,865,659
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 (b) Analysis of changes in fi nancing during the year

    Capital subvention fund
   2004 2003
   HK$ HK$
  At 1st April 2,865,659 967,439
  Transfer to other liabilities (2,865,659) -
  Cash infl ow from government grant - 2,919,075
  Amount utilised during the year - (1,020,855)
    
  At 31st March - 2,865,659
        

14 Approval of accounts

 The accounts were approved by the Commission Members on 3 November 2004.
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Mrs. CHU YEUNG Pak-yu, Patricia 
B.B.S.

Chairperson
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The Hon. LI Fung-ying
B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P. 
Member

Mr. John Robertson BUDGE 
M.B.E., J.P. 
Member
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Ms. CHAN Yu
Member

Ms. Gloria CHANG
Member

Mrs. LING LAU Yuet-fun, Laura 
Member

Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla 
Member

Dr. WU Wai-yung, Raymond 
G.B.S., O.B.E., J.P.
Member

Prof. CHOW Wing-sun, Nelson
M.B.E., S.B.S., J.P. 
Member
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Prof. Japhet Sebastian LAW  
Member

Ms. KO Po-ling
Member

Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph
J.P. 
Member

Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy
G.B.S., O.B.E., J.P.
Member

Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony 
Member

Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter 
J.P.
Member

Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie
Member
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Membership

1 Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter (Convenor)

2 Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy

3 The Hon. LI Fung-ying

4 Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony

5 Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla

Terms of Reference

1  To review the draft Annual Estimates of Expenditure of the 
Commission.

2 To consider and approve donations to the Commission.

3  To review the draft statements of accounts of the 
Commission and the auditor’s reports.

4  To review the draft annual report on the activities of the 
Commission.

5  To review the Memorandum of Administrative 
Arrangements and any proposed amendments thereof.

6  To set up tender boards in relation to matters connected 
with the work of the Commission and to approve such 
recommendations as are made by these boards.

7  To set up recruitment boards in relation to staff  employed 
at MPS Point 45 and above and to approve such 
recommendations as are made by these boards.

8  To advise on matters related to further employment or 
termination of service in relation to staff  employed at MPS 
point 45 and above.

9  To approve reports for quarterly reviews under the 
Memorandum of Administrative Arrangements.

10  To make recommendations to the Commission in respect 
of the appointment of an auditor.

11  To keep the staffi  ng and administrative policies of the 
Commission under review.

12  To advise and to approve recommendations in relation 
to the leasing, renewal or acquisition of the Commission’s 
offi  ce accommodation.

Administration and Finance 
Committee
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Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the 
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2004)

Community Participation and Publicity 
Committee

Membership

1 Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy (Convenor)

2 Ms. Gloria CHANG

3 Ms. KO Po-ling

4 Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph

5 The Hon. LI Fung-ying

6 Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla

7 Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie

8 Ms. CHAN Choi-ying, Virginia (Co-opted Member)

9 Ms. LAI Sau-ling (Co-opted Member)

Terms of Reference

1  To advise on measures to foster community participation 
in promoting equal opportunities and eliminating 
discrimination.

2  To advise on measures for liaison with government bodies 
and non-government organisations including employment 
establishments and concern groups.

3  To advise on measures for developing corporate partnership 
in promoting equal opportunities policy.

4  To advise on measures to strengthen publicity and media 
relations of the Commission.

5  To receive reports on actions taken by the EOC offi  ce in 
pursuance of (1), (2), (3) and (4) above.

6  To consider and approve funding applications in connection 
with promotion and publicity projects to be undertaken by 
community organisations within the budgetary confi nes as 
approved by the Home Aff airs Bureau from time to time.

7  To monitor community response to the Commission’s 
work and make recommendations to the Commission on 
the way forward.
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Public Education and Research 
Committee

Membership

1 Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph (Convenor)

2 Ms. CHAN Yu

3 Ms. KO Po-ling

4 Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony

5 Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie

6 Prof. CHOW Wing-sun, Nelson

7 Mr. CHONG Chan-yau (Co-opted Member)

8 Mr. CHAN Yun-kan (Co-opted Member)

Terms of Reference

1  To advise on measures to be taken in conducting public 
education on issues of concern to the Commission.

2  To consider and approve training modules of the 
Commission within the budgetary confi nes as determined 
by the Commission from time to time.

3  To consider and approve research projects of the 
Commission within the budgetary confi nes as determined 
by the Commission from time to time.

4  To receive reports from the EOC offi  ce on the commissioning 
of projects in public education and research.

5  To receive progress reports on public education and 
research undertaken or commissioned by the Commission.
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Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the 
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2004)

Legal and Complaints Committee

Membership

1 Mrs. CHU YEUNG Pak-yu, Patricia (Convenor)

2 Mr. John Robertson BUDGE (Deputy Convenor )

3 Ms. CHAN Yu

4 Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph

5 Mrs. LING LAU Yuet-fun, Laura

6 Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla

7 Dr. WU Wai-yung, Raymond

8 Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter

Terms of Reference

1  To recommend to the EOC rules to be made under section 
88 of SDO, section 85 of DDO and section 66 of FSDO.

2  To receive reports on the assistance by way of conciliation 
provided by conciliators to persons lodging complaints in 
writing with the EOC pursuant to section 84 of SDO, section 
80 of DDO and section 62 of the FSDO and to keep the EOC 
informed accordingly.

3  To receive reports on the decisions made by the Chairperson, 
pursuant to section 84(4) of SDO, section 80(4) of DDO and 
section 62(4) of the FSDO, not to conduct or to discontinue 
an investigation into an act the subject of a complaint and 
to keep the EOC informed accordingly.

4  To receive reports from conciliators in respect of cases 
where there has not been a settlement of the matter to 
which an act the subject of a complaint lodged pursuant to 
section 84 of SDO, section 80 of DDO and section 62 of the 
FSDO relates.

5  To consider applications made under section 85 of 
SDO, section 81 of DDO and section 63 of the FSDO for 
assistance other than by way of conciliation and to grant 
such applications it thinks fi t.

6  To advise the EOC on terms of reference to conduct a 
formal investigation.
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7  To make preliminary fi ndings in a formal investigation and 
prepare a report of such for the consideration of the EOC, 
including making recommendations to the EOC.

8  To make recommendations to the EOC in respect of the 
issue of enforcement notices.

9  To receive reports on compliance with enforcement notices 
and recommend to the EOC whether a formal investigation 
should be conducted in the event of non-compliance.

10  To decide on actions to be taken in respect of persistent 
discrimination or sexual harassment under section 81 of 
SDO, in respect of persistent discrimination, harassment 
or vilifi cation under section 77 of DDO and in respect of 
persistent discrimination under section 59 of FSDO.

11  To decide on the proceedings to be brought in respect of 
a contravention of sections 43, 44 or 45 of SDO, sections 
42, 43, 44 or 45 of DDO and sections 31, 32 and 33 of FSDO, 
pursuant to section 82 of SDO, section 78 of DDO and 
section 60 of FSDO respectively.

12  To keep under review Schedules 3 and 5 of SDO, Schedules 
2, 3 and 5 of DDO and Schedule 2 of FSDO and when 
necessary, recommend to the EOC proposals for amending 
the schedules, in accordance with section 66 of SDO, 
section 63 of DDO and section 45 of FSDO respectively.

13  To keep under review the working of SDO, DDO and FSDO 
and when necessary, recommend to the EOC proposals 
for amending the Ordinances in accordance with section 
64(1)(e) of SDO, section 62(1)(e) of DDO and section 44(1)(d) 
of FSDO.
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Organizational Structure of the 
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2004)

Notes:
1  Total number of staff  including those under establishment and others on 

short-term renewable contract is 79 (excluding EOC Chairperson).
2 Total number of staff  under establishment is 71 (as shown above).
3  Total number of staff  on short-term renewable contract is 8.
* Secondee from the Equal Opportunity Commission Victoria, Australia.
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Management Team of the 
Equal Opportunities Commission  (as at 31.3.2004)

Chairperson
CHU YEUNG Pak-yu, Patricia

Legal Adviser
Alexandra PAPADOPOULOS

Director (Planning & Administration)
CHAN Yick-man, Michael

Acting Director (Operations)
LI Siu-kwai, Joseph

Special Projects Manager
George BISAS

Chief Equal Opportunities Offi  cer 
(Policy Support & Research)
CHU Chung-man, Ferrick

Head (Promotion & Education)
LIU Jia-shin, Betty
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The Equal Opportunities Commission is empowered under 
section 85 of the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (SDO), section 
81 of the Disability Discrimination Ordinance (DDO) and section 
63 of the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (FSDO) to 
grant various forms of assistance to any person who wishes to 
take legal proceedings in respect of a complaint lodged but 
for which conciliation has been unsuccessful. During 2003/04, 
the EOC received 80 applications for assistance and granted 
assistance to 35* applications.  The assistance granted by the 
Commission may take many forms, and includes legal advice 
by the EOC’s lawyers, services for obtaining further information 
or evidence, or representation in legal proceedings by the 
EOC’s lawyers, or by barristers in private practice briefed by the 
Commission.  A general breakdown of the numbers by type of 
case appears below:

Cases Assistance Granted Assistance Not Granted Under Consideration

Disability discrimination or harassment (employment)

Disability discrimination or harassment 

(other fi elds e.g. provision of goods and services)

Sex discrimination or harassment (employment)

Sex discrimination or harassment 

(other fi elds, e.g. provision of goods and services)

Family status discrimination (employment)

Family status discrimination 

(provision of goods and services)

Total

* including 16 cases which were received during 2002/03.
**  although these 17 cases were received during 2003/04, they were not 

considered until the following year.
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The following 17 cases were resolved without commencing 
legal proceedings in 2003/04:

Appendix 6  

Legally Assisted Cases

Cases Outcome

Disability discrimination in provision of goods and services Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in provision of goods and services Parties settled on confi dential terms

Sexual harassment and victimisation in employment Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in provision of goods and services Parties settled on confi dential terms

Sexual harassment Parties settled on confi dential terms

Pregnancy discrimination in employment Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in employment Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Pregnancy discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in access to premises Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in access to premises Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in access to premises Applicant withdrew

Sex discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

Disability discrimination in employment Commission withdrew assistance in light 
 of further examination of evidence

 
Disability discrimination in employment Applicant withdrew

In the same period, the Commission also handled 26 other cases in which 
legal assistance had been granted (including cases carried over from previous 
years).  These were cases which were not at the stage of commencing court 
proceedings.
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Commission assisted court cases which commenced before 
2003/04:

Appendix 7  

Court Cases

Cases Status

Sex discrimination in retirement policy Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in recruitment by a disciplinary  Ongoing at the end of 2003/04

service on the grounds of family history of mental illness 

Pregnancy discrimination in employment  Ongoing at the end of 2003/04

Disability discrimination in employment  Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in provision of goods, services & facilities  Parties settled on confi dential terms

Pregnancy discrimination in employment  Default judgment

Sexual harassment in employment, victimization in employment  Parties settled on confi dential terms

Sexual harassment in employment  Parties settled on confi dential terms

Cases under appeal:

Cases Status

Pregnancy discrimination in recruitment by an old aged home  Appeal by respondent

Commission assisted court cases which commenced in 
2003/04:

Cases Status

Disability discrimination in provision of goods, services & facilities Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in employment  Parties settled on confi dential terms

Disability discrimination in employment  Ongoing at the end of 2003/04
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Organization
The Boys & Girls Clubs Association of HK Growth & 

Development Centre

Hong Kong Youth Institute Ltd

Homantin Lutheran Family Support Networking Team

Hong Chi Winifred Mary Cheung Morninghope School

Lam Tin Methodist Primary School

Bishop Ford Memorial School

Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association 
Butterfl y Bay Integrated Social Service Centre

Hong Kong PHAB Association East Kowloon PHAB

Retina Hong Kong

Hong Kong Women Workers' Association

The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong Po On Road 
Children and Youth Centre cum Library

The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of HK Tsing Yi Children 
and Youth Integrated Service Centre

Lok Kwan Social Service Limited

Volunteer Space

Drama Fire

Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power

Heep Hong Society Tai Hang Tung Parents Resource Centre

Heep Hong Society Jockey Club Parents Resource Centre

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong Y’s Men’s Centre for the Deaf

Kowloon Women’s Organisations Federation

The Church of United Brethren in Christ Whampoa Integrated 
Children and Youth Service Centre

Caritas Community Centre – Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women’s Association

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups Ping Shek Youth 
S.P.O.T.

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups Tin Yuet Youth 
S.P.O.T.

Hong Kong Children & Youth Services Fong Shu Chuen 
Integrated Services Centre

HK SKH Ma On Shan (South) Children & Youth Integrated 
Service Centre

Appendix 8  
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S.K.H. Lady MacLehose Centre Family Activity and Resource 
Centre

Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service – Integrated Services for Persons 
with Mental Illness

Positive Peers, Rainbow of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation Community 
Rehabilitation Network

Hong Kong Playground Association Choi Ha C & Y Centre

Cheung Ching Lutheran Center For the Disabled

Hong Chi Association-Hong Chi Lei Muk Shue Centre

Hong Kong PHAB Association Peng Chau Neighbourhood 
Elderly cum Children & Youth Centre

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong Shatin Youth Outreaching Social 
Work Team

New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong

Hong Kong Playground Association Integrated Service for 
Children & Youth – Tsing Yi

Hong Kong Sheung Kung Hui Ma On Shan (North) Children 
and Youth Integrated Service Centre

Heep Hong Society Kwok Yip Lin Houn Centre

Patient Resource and Social Centre, Kwai Chung Hospital

Lions College

Association For Rights of Industrial Accident Victims

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups Family Life 
Education Unit

Alliance for Renal Patients Mutual Help Association

Pok Oi Hospital Chan Shi Sau Memorial Social Service Centre

Hong Kong Blind Union

Fu Hong Society

The Boys’ and Girls’ Club Association of Hong Kong Jockey 
Club Cheung Sha Wan Children and Youth Integrated 
Services Centre

Hong Kong Association of the Deaf

Chi Lin Buddhist Secondary School

The Salvation Army Yaumatei Integrated Service for Young 
People

The Boys’ and Girls’Clubs Association of HK Shek Lei Children 
and Youth Centre



86

Actuarial Society of Hong Kong
Caritas Community Development Service
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
Civil Service Training and Development Institute
Consulate General of the Republic of Indonesia
Curriculum Development Institute
Department of Social Work of the Hong Kong Baptist 

University
Education and Manpower Bureau
Forest Union
Global Summit of Women
Health, Welfare and Food Bureau
Heep Hong Society Tai Hang Tung Parents Resource Centre
Home Aff airs Bureau
Hong Kong Association of Banks
Hong Kong Christian Institute
Hong Kong Council of Social Service
Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association
Hong Kong Education City
Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority
Hong Kong Family Welfare Society NT (Kwai Fong) Centre
Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi)
The Law Society of Hong Kong
Hong Kong Lutheran Social Service Cheung Ching Lutheran 

Centre for the Disabled
Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation 
Hong Kong Society for the Blind
The Society for the Relief of Disabled Children
Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Hong Kong YWCA Women’s Aff airs Service
Institute of Architects
Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources Management
Internet Professionals Association
Jumbo Kids Theatre
Kowloon Women’s Organizations Federation
Labour Department 
Mental Health Month 2003 Organising Committee
Radio Television Hong Kong
Retina Hong Kong
PTU News
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
The Committee on the Promotion of Racial Harmony
The Kids on the Block
Transport Department
United Nations Development Fund for Women
Vocational Training Council
Women’s Commission

Appendix 9  
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We pledge to serve the community to the best of our abilities.  We are committed to providing a courteous, helpful and effi  cient 
service.  The service standard and the performance target we aim to achieve are as follows:

 Service Standard Performance Target

  (% meeting standard)

Enquiry

Answer telephone enquiries during offi  ce hours immediately

Interview a walk-in enquirer at EOC offi  ce within 30 minutes

Reply to written enquiries on simple issues within 5 working days

Reply to written enquiries on complex issues within 14 working days

Complaint

Initiate action on a written complaint within 3 working days

Interview a prospective complainant within 5 working days

asking for an appointment

Conclude a complaint case within 6 months

Legal Assistance

Inform an applicant of the outcome of  within 3 months

application for legal assistance 

Public Education and Promotion

Meet requests for talks on equal  within 6 weeks

opportunity issues and legislation

Meet requests by mail or fax for EOC publications within 3 working days
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